
County of Solano
Contract Review Worksheet

Contract Number:
(Dept., Division, FY, #)

Authority:

Dept Head Execute

CAO Execute

BOS Approval Required

NOTE: Please review all instructions on the back of this worksheet before you begin processing.

1. Department/Division: 2. Date:

3. Contract Administrator: 4. Phone Ext:

5. Contract Attributes:    Original    Bid/RFP Required? YES     NO   

   Expenditure    Revenue
  Sole Source Contract?      Bid/RFP No:

   Intergovernmental
   Personal/Professional Svcs 
   Purchase of Goods
   Lease
   Construction
   Other

   YES      NO 
Date   

Please attach copy of Bid/RFP or justification.

  Amendment/Change Order
Amendment/Change Order Number

Contract No:  

Date:      

Please attach copies of original/amendments

6. Description of Contract: Name of Contractor:

EIN     SSN   

9.
Is Contractor a California Public Pension Plan Retiree? YES   NO
If yes: Name of Public Pension Plan:  Date of Retirement:

10.

Does Contractor have a personal relationship in a direct line of supervision in your Department?            YES      NO
If yes, please describe relationship:     

Does Contractor have a personal relationship with someone in another Department?       YES        NO
If yes, please provide Department and describe relationship:  

11. Has County contracted with Contractor previously during this fiscal year?    YES    NO

Please list County department if other than the department listed on number 1 above.

12. Effective Date:
Original Contract:     
This amendment:     

13.
Termination Date:
By this amendment:

14. Contract Budget: 15. Payment Terms: 16. Source of Funds:

Original Contract Amount: $
   Prepaid
   Arrears 

   Monthly

Quarterly
   Progress
   Other

   Fed/State Grant
   Fed/State Funding
   CountyTotal of Previous 

Amendments:
$

Current Amendment: $    Fixed
   Actual
   Estimate

Specify:________________

_ Fed Catalog No:    

Total Amount of Contract $ State Legislation:

17. Fund:
Budget 
Unit:

Sub-object: 18. Current Appropriation Sufficient? YES  NO

19. Proposed Board of Supervisors Agenda Date, if required.  Please attach agenda summary and ATR request.

20. Remarks

County Counsel

HR Analyst (for Contract Employees) or 
Risk M g m (for insurance changes) 

21. Signature Route:

epartment Contract Administrator

CAO Analyst

Rev 202    

Timothy Flanagan (May 12, 2025 15:36 PDT)

William Emlen (Jun 12, 2025 13:12 PDT)
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF VACAVILLE AND 

THE COUNTY OF SOLANO 
FOR RADIO SUPPORT, REPAIRS, AND SERVICES 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (hereinafter “AMENDMENT”) is made and entered on the date last 

specified below, by and between the CITY OF VACAVILLE, a municipal corporation (hereinafter "CITY"), 

and COUNTY OF SOLANO, a California political subdivision (hereinafter “CONSULTANT”), with reference 

to the following facts: 

A. CITY and CONSULTANT previously entered into an Agreement for Consultant Services 

dated July 24, 2024 (hereinafter “AGREEMENT”) by which CONSULTANT agreed to provide certain 

services to CITY through June 30, 2025, inclusive. 

B. Now, the parties wish to augment and modify the term and scope of the services 

CONSULTANT is to provide to CITY pursuant to the AGREEMENT and increase the compensation due to 

CONSULTANT in connection with the additional time and services. This AMENDMENT serves as the 

written amendment to the AGREEMENT as required by Section 28 of the AGREEMENT. 

 WITH REFERENCE TO THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED FACTS, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

In addition to the services set forth in Section 1 of the AGREEMENT (Scope of Services), 

CONSULTANT shall perform the additional services specified in CONSULTANT’s Addendum to Exhibit B, 

Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit A-1st 

Amendment.  

SECTION 2. EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT. 

CITY and CONSULTANT agree, the AGREEMENT and all its terms, conditions, rights and 

obligations, is hereby extended through June 30, 2026, inclusive. Either party may terminate the 

AGREEMENT, with or without cause, in accordance with Section 13 of the AGREEMENT. Any and all 

performance of obligations required under the AGREEMENT shall remain in effect through the end of the 

term as set forth under this AMENDMENT. 
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SECTION 3. COMPENSATION. 

SECTION 4 of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended by this AMENDMENT to increase the 

compensation paid to CONSULTANT by ninety-five thousand six hundred sixty-three dollars and seventy 

cents ($95,663.70). The total compensation to be paid to CONSULTANT, including both payments for 

professional services and reimbursable expenses pursuant to the AGREEMENT and this AMENDMENT 

shall not exceed one hundred eighty-eight thousand six hundred fifty-four dollars and fifty-five cents 

($188,654.55).   

SECTION 4. COUNTERPART AND ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE. 

As permitted under the U.S. Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce (ESIGN) Act 

of 2000, and the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (UETA), the parties hereby agree to conduct this 

transaction by electronic means. This AMENDMENT may be executed through an electronic signature 

and may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of 

which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The parties agree that the electronic 

signatures appearing on this AMENDMENT are intended by each party using it to have the same force 

and effect as the use of a manual signature for the purposes of validity, enforceability, and admissibility. 

SECTION 5. OTHER PROVISIONS TO REMAIN IN EFFECT 

All other provisions of the AGREEMENT not expressly modified by this AMENDMENT shall 

remain in full force and effect. 
 

______________________________________________________ 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
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WITNESS THE EXECUTION HEREOF on the day and year last written below.   
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  "CITY" 
 
Melinda C. H. Stewart, City Attorney CITY OF VACAVILLE, a municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________ By: _______________________________ 
 David Nam, Assistant City Attorney          GeorgeAnne Meggers-Smith, Assistant City Manager 
                                                                          
 
  Dated: ____________________________   
     
 

 
"CONSULTANT"   
 
COUNTY OF SOLANO, a California political subdivision  

 
 
 

By: _______________________________      
       Bill Emlen, County Administrator   
 

 
     Dated: _____________________________ 

 
 
      

By: __________________________________ 
       Megan Callaway, Dep. County Counsel 

 
 
     Dated: _____________________________ 
 
 
  

David Nam (May 12, 2025 12:22 PDT) GeorgeAnne Meggers-Smith (May 12, 2025 13:05 PDT)
GeorgeAnne Meggers-Smith

05/12/2025

05/12/2025

William Emlen (Jun 12, 2025 13:12 PDT)

06/12/2025
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EXHIBIT A - 1st Amendment 

Scope of Services 

The original scope of services is hereby amended to include the following FY25-26 Radio 

Subscriber Maintenance Program costs and services for CITY radio inventory.  
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__________________________________________ 
[END OF AMENDMENT] 
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